ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
January 17, 2007
8:32 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Bryce Edgnon
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative John Harris
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Bill Thomas
COW TTEE CALENDAR
OVERVI EW(S) :
DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME

— DIVISION OF SPORT FI SH

— DIVISION OF COWERCI AL FI SHERI ES

- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER
ROB BENTZ, Deputy Director
Di vision of Sport Fish
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the Division of Sport Fish

overvi ew.

TOM LAWSON, Director
Di vision of Adm nistrative Services

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- January 17, 2007



Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions regarding the Al aska
Department of Fish & Game overvi ews.

LI SA EVANS, Assistant Director

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Responded to question for the Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane, Division of Sport Fish overview.

PATTI NELSON, Acting Director

D vi sion of Commercial Fisheries

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the Division of Comerci al
Fi sheri es overvi ew.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Commttee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 8:32:02 AM Present at the call
to order were Representatives WIson, Johansen, LeDoux, Hol nes,
and Edgnon. Representative Harris was excused. Representative
Thomas was al so in attendance.

OVERVI EN DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME — DI VI SI ON OF SPORT FI SH

8:34:59 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
overviews by the Alaska Departnment of Fish & Ganme divisions.
Additionally, he outlined the commttee neeting schedule for the
session; including specific agenda itens for inmm nent neetings.

8:36:14 AM

MR. BENTZ, Deputy Director, Dvision of Sport Fish, Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&G, introduced the departnent
staff from the testifying divisions. Continuing, he provided a
synopsis for the presentation, highlighting the division's core
services, fiscal year 2008 (FY 08) budget requests, divisional
organi zations, legislative targets and neasures, identify the
fisheries managed, and the FY 06 acconpli shnents.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- January 17, 2007



MR. BENTZ directed the committee’s attention to the Division of
Sport Fish handout and began with the Al aska Departnment of Fish
& Gane’s mssion statenment, and read the Division of Sport Fish
m ssion statenent: “Pr ot ect and inmprove the State’'s
recreational fisheries resources.” This mssion, he explained,
is acconplished via the eight core services provided by the
di vi si on. He stated that the first core service is stock
assessnent, noting that this wrk 1is performed on both
anadronous and resident species inportant to the sport fisheries
of the state.

8:39:10 AM

CHAI R SEATON invited Representative Thomas to join the commttee
at the table.

MR. BENTZ resuned his explanation with the second core service,
t he managenent of the fisheries, which includes the devel opnent
and establishment of regulations in conjunction with the Board
of Fisheries. The third core service is hatchery production.
M. Bentz described the state operated hatcheries, which produce
king and silver salnon, rainbow and |ake trout, Arctic char and

Arctic grayling. Responding to a question, he provided that
these hatcheries are Jlocated on the Fort R chardson and
El mrendorf Air Force Bases. Addi tional ly, he said, the

department is in the design process of creating two new
hatcheries to be located in Fairbanks and Anchorage, as
repl acenent facilities for the existing facilities.

8:40:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired whether the new hatchery, to be
| ocated in Anchorage, would replace the two which now exist in
t he area.

MR. BENTZ explained the need for the replacenent and denolition
of the existing Anchorage hatcheries. It is expected, he said,
that the planned hatchery will produce twice as many fish as the
two existing hatcheries in a nodern, nore workable facility.

VR. BENTZ noved to the fourth <core service - access,
devel opnent, and mai ntenance. He explained that the division
buil ds, buys, |eases, and maintains physical access to sport
fisheries throughout the state. He followed wth habitat

assessnment as the fifth core service. The division continually
eval uates the habitat needs for the managed fish populations.
As the sixth <core service, information and education, he

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- January 17, 2007



expl ai ned that the division operates regional outreach prograns
to inform and educate the public about sport fishing
opportunities, regulation requirenents, and life histories. The
final core services, he stated, are enforcenent, and planning
and surveys. The division personnel assist in the enforcenent
of the state regulations and nonitor the preference of the
public anglers in regard to the sport fisheries.

8:43:10 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked for clarification of how the division staff
enforces fishing regul ations.

MR. BENTZ responded that all of the field technicians and
permanent staff wundergo a week long training course specific

for regulatory enforcenent. He explained that the focus is on
non-confrontational, information gathering, which may lead to
involving the appropriate wildlife enforcenent officials. I n

further response, he clarified that although trained division
staff have the authority to wite violation and citation
tickets, it is not a conmon practice.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 8:46:01 AMto 8:47:58 AM

8:47:58 AM

MR. BENTZ continued, directing the commttee’'s attention to a
pie chart illustrating the FY 08 projections for each of the
core services. He pointed out that over 50 percent of the

budget is devoted to fishery stock assessnent and managenent,
and specified that these are the cornerstones of the division.

CHAIR SEATON requested further detail on stock assessnent
t echni ques.

MR. BENTZ explained that the techniques are species and | ocation
specific and underscored that there is no standard research
tenpl at e.

CHAI R SEATON asked whether the majority of stock assessnent work
is perforned on fresh water species.

MR. BENTZ stock answered that assessnent work is done on various
sal twat er species save halibut which is a federally managed. He
clarified that the work is targeted on resident and anadronous
speci es.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- January 17, 2007



8:50: 15 AM

MR. BENTZ proceeded to the FY 08 budget request page. He
expl ained that the $3 mllion increase is on par with the FY 07
request, and stated that this represents general funds used to
cover the cost of the Public Enployee Retirenment System (PERS)

MR. BENTZ introduced the four funding sources, and stated that
the mpjority of the division's funding is derived from user
fees; mamking it unique to other state agencies. He reported
that the federal sport fish restoration program provides an
excise tax on boating fuels, as well as fishing equipnent,

out board notors, and other sport fishing needs. These federa

recei pts provide 46 percent of the division s budget. The fish
and ganme fund provides an additional [29 percent]. These are
dedi cated funds which include all sport fish license and tag
fees, as well as the sport fishing guide and business |icense
f ees. Further, he stated that the fish and gane funds are used
to offset the federal mtching funds. The general funds,

provided by the state, represent 10 percent of the budget and
are utilized solely to cover personnel benefits such as PERS

heal th insurance, and risk managenent i ssues. The final 15
percent of the budget is conprised of other funds received
through various prograns including inter agency receipts via
rei mbursable services agreenents (RSAs), designated program
recei pts, capital inprovenment projects (CIPs), and statutory
desi gnat ed program recei pts (SDPRs).

8:52: 56 AM
CHAI R SEATON confirnmed that a typical exanple of an RSA would be

the Division of Sport Fish performng an assessnment for the
Depart ment of Natural Resources.

8:54: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN directed attention to the FY 08 budget
funding source page and the line item identified as 1036 -
commercial fish loan fund. He asked how the $5.9 thousand

i ndi cat ed woul d be used.

TOM LAWSON, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&5, responded that this
funding source cane about due to a general fund shortfal

experienced in past years. The legislature authorized the
commercial fishing loan funds, nanaged by the Departnent of
Commer ce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), Division of

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- January 17, 2007



| nvestnents to provide these funds to the Al aska Departnent of
Fish & Gane, at that tine. This figure represents a remant
from that disbursenent. He will provide further details to the
conmittee chair.

8:56: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON commented that over the years these funds
have been nade available to the general fund, due to the
successful fisherman’s | oan program

CHAI R SEATON pointed out that this is a proposed budget for FY
08, and proposed funding sources for that budget. He conmented
that the Commercial Fish Loan Fund may be a fundi ng source which
is no | onger needed.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON clarified for the commttee s benefit that
the total anount of funding disbursed to the Al aska Departnent
of Fish & Gane is not represented in the $5.9 thousand figure
indicated in the Division of Sport Fish FY 08 budget request.

CHAI R SEATON requested that the full amount of funds received by
the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Ganme, from the D vision of
| nvestnents, be disclosed to the commttee. He al so requested
that future presentation handouts be marked w th page nunbers
for everyone’'s conveni ence.

8:59:11 AM

MR. BENTZ directed attention to the next page in the packet
whi ch provided sport fishing statistics by anglers, |icenses
sold, angler days, and angler expenditures, as reported in the
2005 statewi de harvest survey conpleted by the US Fish &
Wldlife Service.

8:59: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked whether there has been a fluctuation
in the nunber of |icenses issued.

VR. BENTZ responded that the license nunbers have been
consistent and increasing at an expected rate of 1-3 percent
However, resident |icense sal es have declined slightly.

CHAIR SEATON stated that the permanent identification card

(PID), as issued by Al aska Departnent of Fish & Ganme to
residents over the age of 65 will need to be reviewed. He

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- January 17, 2007



reported that that the issuance and nonitoring of these cards,
and receipt of replacenment cards, is being abused on the Kena
Peni nsul a. This abuse translates to |limts on salnon to be
harvested as well as other conflicts. He requested that the
Division of Sport Fish exam ne how the regions are responding to
these concerns and be prepared to report the results to the
comittee. He underscored that these cards were created to
serve residents of the state and the departnent needs to
establish neans to nonitor and assure proper usage; perhaps in
conjunction with the Permanent Fund (PFD) records.

9:04: 31 AM

VR. BENTZ introduced the six regions of the divisions
organi zation: Region | (Southeast), Region Il (Southcentral),
and Region [IIll (Interior), Research & Technical Services,
Research and Restoration, and the departnent Headquarters
| ocated in Juneau. In the three regional offices and the 22

area offices, the Dvision enploys 245 permanent and 216
seasonal enpl oyees. This allows for the division to maintain a
high quality of in-season service.

9:06:41 AM

MR. BENTZ explained that, in order to provide a neans to neasure
the division's ability to fulfill its nmission, the |egislature
approved an overall outcome for the division, as attained
t hrough three targets and neasures. The first target is to
provide 2.5 mllion angler days and sell 450,000 |icenses. This

target has been exceeded during the past two years. Target 2 is
to show a positive trend in trip related expenditures as
nmeasured by the National Survey of Hunting and Fishing. He
reported that a survey is due out in the next year, however,
past survey trends show that the division is on track for

nmeeting this goal. The third target is to increase to at |east
75 percent the nunmber of anglers that are satisfied with the
variety of recreational fisheries experiences available. The
information, which he is able to report, is based on 1997 data.

At that tinme the resident target was at the 65 percent |evel
and the nonresident target was exceeded at just over 80 percent.

9:09:16 AM
MR. BENTZ, responding to a question, pointed out that the

surveys which provided the statistics to neasure these goals are
not current. However, he reiterated that a survey is currently

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- January 17, 2007



being designed for use this year. He offered to nake the
specifics of that survey available to the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked how the 450,000 target for license
sales was arrived at, and whether there is a yearly percentage
i ncrease on this nunber.

9:11: 00 AM

MR. BENTZ replied that this is not a “rolling average.” He
explained that the previous goal of 450,000 was reached, and
guesti oned whet her this anopunt shoul d be raised.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN commented that it would be good to have
a reference point for this figure.

LI SA EVANS, Assistant Director, D vision of Sport Fish, Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&S, explained that the nunber of
resident and non-resident anglers have remained the sane, while
the popul ation has increased. Therefore, the percentage of
resident anglers is lower than in past years. The focus of the
angl er satisfaction survey is to determne the reason for this.
In addition, the [information and education core service] would
focus its efforts on encouraging resident anglers to fish in
over crowded areas.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN clarified that the percentage of
resident anglers is decreasing.

M5. EVANS replied that this is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX, in regard to increased expenditures,
guestioned whether this mght result in a decrease in resident
angl ers.

MR. BENTZ replied that he is unable to speak to the specifics of
this issue, although the percentage of non-resident anglers is
hi gher than in previous years.

CHAIR SEATON surmised that the aforenmentioned survey would
provi de these answers.

MR. BENTZ went on to discuss the types of fisheries managed by
t he division. These include sport, personal, and educational
fisheries. In regard to educational fisheries, he stated that
in 2006, 13 existed statew de.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- January 17, 2007



CHAI R SEATON inquired as to who holds the educational fisheries
permts.

MR. BENTZ replied these are given to tribal and community
organi zations that are not in subsistence areas and therefore
are unable to “hand down” traditional harvest and preservation
nmet hods.

9:16: 44 AM

MR. BENTZ noved on to discuss fisheries diversity. The various
types of fisheries include: hi gh-use road-accessible, renote,
freshwater, saltwater, resident fish species, shellfish, wnter,
gui ded, and vyouth-only. In regard to guided fisheries, he
explained that these have increased in both freshwater and
sal twat er. Yout h-only fisheries, he said, were established for

yout h under 16 years of age.
9:18: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to where the youth only
fisheries are | ocated.

MR. BENTZ replied that these are |ocated in Anchorage and Honer.
Yout h-only fisheries are “very popul ar,” he said.

9:19:19 AM

MR. BENTZ then discussed the FY 06 acconplishnents. The |argest
acconpl i shmrent, he said, was the sale of $68 nillion in bonds,

to construct two new fish hatcheries. In addition, the
departnment chall enged unnecessary expansion of the federal
subsi stence program along with licensing all sport fishing
gui des and busi nesses. He explained that the departnent has

i npl enented a nore detail ed | ogbook data col |l ection system

CHAIR SEATON inquired as to whether this new system contains
penalties to prevent “paddi ng” of the | ogbook.

MR. BENTZ replied that | ogbooks are required to be turned in on
a weekly basis, and effort has been nmade to report any
di screpancies. Cass A m sdeneanors may be invol ved.

9:21:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the information collected may be
used in regard to charter fishernen.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 9- January 17, 2007



MR. BENTZ replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON requested addition details regarding the
bonds used to construct the new fisheries.

MR. BENTZ replied that the bonds were sold through Merrill
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith I|ncorporated (MPF&S). He stated
that he does not know the financial details, and offered to get
this informtion.

CHAI R SEATON comented that this would be helpful. He clarified
that these were revenue bonds, adding that the increase in the
sport fisheries licenses is intended to “pay off” these bonds.

MR. BENTZ agreed. He went on to say that in FY 06, five access
projects were conpleted, while 23 new projects were initiated

The departnment also initiated three nmajor stock assessnent
projects for sockeye salnon in the Cook Inlet. When these are
conplete, he said, the departnent will be able to provide the
commercial and sport fish managers with additional information
regarding the aforenentioned stocks. He stated that permts
were issued for special use areas and wildlife habitat research
and restoration was inplenented.

CHAI R SEATON stated that the researchers would need to cone
before the commttee at a later date to discuss the
af orenenti oned assessnent projects.

9:25: 04 AM

MR. BENTZ then outlined the FY 08 key challenges: to construct
new hatcheri es; maintain existing hatcheries until new
hat cheries are conpleted; increase satisfaction anong resident
anglers; increase staff recruitnment and retention; work wth
federal agencies on sport halibut issues; maintain access to
hunti ng and fishing areas; assure resource devel opnent mnim zes
effects on fish and wildlife habitat.

9:27:15 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON asked whether there have been pay
i ncreases to encourage staff retention.

MR. LAWSON replied no.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -10- January 17, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON, in regard to sport fishing statistics,
inquired as to whether this takes into consideration sport
fishing | odges and comrercial econom c activity.

MR. BENTZ replied yes.
9:28: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked for nore detail regarding sport
hal i but i ssues.

MR. BENTZ explained that the departnent has provided the North
Pacific Council wth information, including the nunber of
charter vessels, businesses, anmount of fish harvested by charter
clients, average weight of fish, and ports of entry. He stated
that the departnment works wth the council to analyze the
potential inpacts of the restrictions currently being revi ened.

CHAI R SEATON asked for information regarding the departnment’s
analysis of the International Pacific Halibut Conmm ssion’s
(IPHC) ability to detail the catch per day all owance.

9:31: 38 AM

MR. BENTZ replied that the bag limts are established by the
| PHC. These limts are set based on the biological paraneters
of the halibut stock. He stated that the departnent does not
believe the IPHC has the authority to restrict one angler type
over another in order to achieve the aforenentioned all ocations.

CHAIR SEATON asked if a legal opinion to this affect 1is
avai | abl e.

MR. BENTZ replied that he would get this information to the
conmittee.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON surmised that a new opinion my be
necessary.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 9:34:23 AMto 9:40:41 AM

OVERVI EW  DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME - DIVISION OF COMVERCI AL
FI SHERI ES

9:40: 41 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -11- January 17, 2007



PATTI NELSON, Acting Director, Division of Conmercial Fisheries,
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&5, began her presentation
by reading from the D vision of Commercial Fisheries mssion
st at enent . Referring to a handout titled “Overview of the
Division of Commercial Fisheries,” she explained the primary
responsibilities of the division, which include managing
commercial and personal use, and subsistence fisheries wthin

state waters. The comercial fisheries, she said, are
“incredibly diverse,” ranging from small boat “near shore”
fisheries, to larger, off-shore fisheries. Movi ng on, she

pointed out a graph titled “Exvessel Value of Alaska's
Commercial Fisheries (Adjusted to Constant 1977 Dollars),” and
explained that this shows the exvessel value of Alaska’s

commercial fisheries from 1977 to 2006. The term “exvessel
value” refers to the post-season adjusted value that is received
by the commercial permt holder. She pointed out that each bar

is divided into the various types of fisheries.

CHAIR SEATON inquired as to whether mariculture hatcheries are
included in the commercial fisheries managed by the departnent.

9:44:16 AM

M5. NELSON replied that they are included; however, she stated
that she is wunsure whether the aforenentioned graph reflects
this.

M5. NELSON, in response to a question from Representative
LeDoux, explained that “mariculture” refers to fish-farmng in
sal twat er. In the state of Alaska, she said, mariculture for
shellfish is allowed, although *“fin-fish farmng” is not
al | oned.

CHAI R SEATON asked for further clarification regarding the use
of “aquaculture” and “mariculture.”

M5. NELSON expl ai ned that “mariculture” focuses on shellfish and
pl ant species, while “aquacul ture” focuses on sal non hatcheri es.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON, in regard to the Marine Aquacul ture Task
Force, offered his understanding that the division nonitored the
meetings, but did not play an active roll. He inquired as to
whet her this is correct.

M5. NELSON replied that while the division may have had
representation at the aforenentioned neetings, it is not

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -12- January 17, 2007



directly involved in the decisions made by the task force, as
this is a federal group.

9:46: 52 AM

M5. NELSON returned to the graph, pointing out that the exvessel
val ue of salnon fisheries has declined over recent years, while
groundfi sh values have remained constant. She expl ai ned that
the decline in exvessel value of salnon is a result of [|ower
prices and increased inflation. Exvessel value, she said, shows
the amount received by the fisherman for their catch. However
in order to neasure the total economc inpact of commercial
fisheries, a broader perspective nust be taken.

M5. NELSON noved on to the next slide, titled “Econom c |npact
of Seafood Industry on Alaska s Econonmy in 2001 (Source:
Nort hern Econom cs, Inc. 2003). This shows the inpact of the
Al askan seafood industry on the state’s econony. These inpacts
i nclude: Cenerating 36,900 full-tine jobs, approximtely 23,100
of which were held by Alaskans; generating $932 mllion in
direct payments to labor, with $370 mllion going to Al aska
residents; a total of $3 billion in sales generated within the
state; nore taxes paid to state general fund than any other
i ndustry, with the exception of oil and gas.

9:48: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to the neaning of “full-tinme
equi val ent” j ob.

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that this termrefers to
i ndividuals working half-tine, explaining that two of these
positions would add up to one full-tine position. He added that
this also refers to year-round enpl oynent.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON comented that this information would be
i mportant during budget discussions.

CHAI R SEATON said “this is ... a standard neasure for |ooking at
jobs in the private sector.”

9:50:13 AM
MR. LAWSON agreed that this is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said “lI ... think it’s ... interesting
that ... two-thirds of the jobs were going to ... Alaskans, and

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -13- January 17, 2007



yet, it looks like less than one-half of the nbney was going to
Al askans.”

CHAI R SEATON asked for nore information regarding this.
M5. NELSON offered to provide this information.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES inquired as to whether information
regardi ng seasonal enploynent is avail able.

M5. NELSON replied that she does not have this information;
however, she would provide it to the commttee.

CHAI R SEATON requested that the full study be distributed to the
comittee.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX comrented that it would be “interesting to
know' whether this has any connection to the privatization of
t he i ndustry.

9:52: 16 AM

M5. NELSON went on to explain the core services provided by the
di vi si on. These are: stock assessnent and applied research,
harvest managenent, |aboratory services, aquaculture permtting,
dat a processi ng, and i nformation services and public
partici pation. In regard to stock assessnment and applied

research, she explained that this includes ongoing progranms
designed for enuneration and understanding of salnon, herring,
groundfish, and shellfish stocks. She then explained the
various prograns and surveys and gave a brief description of
pi ctures showing the various salnmon enuneration and sanpling
projects around the state.

M5. NELSON noved on to discuss harvest nanagenent. Thi s
i ncl udes: assisting the Board of Fisheries in establishing
regul ati ons and managenent plans, opening and closing fishing
areas and setting fishing tine, collecting harvest and
bi ol ogi cal data, and witing annual mnmanagenent reports. She
stated that the area managers work 24 hours per day when the
fisheries are wunderway, and opined that this is one of the
departnent’s strengths. Moving on to the next slide, she
di scussed | aboratory services. The | aboratories avail able are:
pat hol ogy, coded-wire tag and otolith aging, and genetic stock
i dentification.

9:57:39 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -14- January 17, 2007



M5. NELSON expl ained that the fish pathology |aboratory nonitors
and controls finfish and shellfish diseases statew de,
conducting over 14,000 diagnostic tests annually. The coded-
wire tag and otolith aging |aboratory tracks sal non popul ations
using thermal marks induced on fish otoliths, and uses a
detail ed database to quantify the survival of fish groups, and
is part of a standardized sal non neasurenent program O her
states involved in this program are: O egon, Wshington, |daho,
and British Col onbia. The genetic stock identification
| abor at ory, she said, uses genetic markers to identify
popul ation units, and is anong the worlds top fishery genetics
| abs.

CHAI R SEATON pointed out a recent disaster in Cook Inlet, and
inquired as to the divisions’ position on over-escapenent, and
whet her the division would utilize its emergency order authority
to prevent this.

M5. NELSON, in regard to the aforenentioned Cook Inlet disaster,
stated that the department nmet with the Board of Fisheries to
di scuss the current managenent plans, which at tines are
conflicting. It is difficult, she said, for managers to neet
t he managenent objectives, adding that the forenbst objective is
to neet escapenent goals. Over the past two years, she said

managers have been “in quite a quandary,” and neetings have been
held to decide the next step, based on the regulations. The
Board of Fisheries fornmed a three-nmenber subcommttee, which
tasked the departnment with creating a |ist of areas which cause
difficulties. This list was then returned to the subconmttee,

which wll then request information from the public in order to
initiate proposals prior to the next mneeting. She stated that
achi evi ng escapenent goal s IS t he di vi si ons “primry
responsibility.” In regard to the Comm ssioner’s ability to “go

outside the managenent plan,” she said that this authority was
used during the previous season.

10: 04: 51 AM

CHAI R SEATON expressed concern with the departnent’s ability to
acconplish its primary objective. He stated that in the past,
the departnment has considered neeting mninum escapenent goals

to be successful. However, he said, while last year this anount
was 80 percent, less than half of the runs within this range
wer e mai ntai ned. He opined that sinply closing fisheries and

allowing the systenms go beyond the escapenent range is not
fulfilling the goal

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 15- January 17, 2007



M5. NELSON stated that a discussion regarding the nmeasurenent of
escapenent goals in various situations would be wel cone.

10: 08: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN, in regard to area biologists, comrented
that this is a hard position to fill, due to an inability to
repl ace outgoing staff with individuals of equal know edge. He
inquired as to whether there is a proactive managenent plan for
recruitnment wthin the departnent, in order to allow the
af orenmentioned individuals to retire.

M5. NELSON replied that this is a major concern within the
depart ment. Conmpensation for enployees is not conpetitive when
conpared to wth private sector and federal jobs. The
departnment has created nmentoring prograns and job training, in
order to allow area nmnagers to give specific goals regarding
information that should be transferred before retirenent.
Additionally, she said, the division has received an increnent
fromits Commercial Fisheries Entry Comm ssion (CFEC), to create
a career devel opnent program The focus of this programis to
devel op mentoring prograns for youth and working relationships
with Universities, in order to increase interest.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if a survey to gather information on
nore conpetitive enployers would help with enpl oyee retention.

MS. NELSON deferred to M. Lawson.

10: 14: 08 AM

MR. LAWBON expl ai ned that over the past year, the state has been
utilizing “market based pay guidelines.” However, these
gui delines were based on 2005 data, which did not produce the
desired results. He surm sed that the 2006 data will show the

divisions inability to conpete with private sector and federa
jobs. He opined that this is a “band-aid” over the larger issue
of the states sal ary schedul e.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what an entry |evel biologist
working for the state would make, in conparison to the sane
position working for the federal governnent. In addition, she
i nqui red about a biologist after ten years of enploynent.

MR. LAWBON replied that the details are not available at this
time; however, he surmsed that an entry level biologist is a

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -16- January 17, 2007



Range 15, which is around $30,000-%$40,000 per year. The
di vision does exit surveys of those individuals |leaving to work
in federal jobs. CGenerally, these individuals are able to make
20-40 percent nore with a conparable |evel of responsibility.

10:17: 17 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that the data from 2005
did not show a difference.

MR. LAWEON replied that the division prefers to find individuals
with experience within the state, therefore, not all of the
rules were applied. The 2006 data will, he said, hopefully |ead
to a salary increase.

CHAI R SEATON stated that this is “very inportant,” and requested
additional information explaining the vacancies and any problens
with filling them He opined that if only one individual is
know edgeable, this is “not a good situation for the state.”

10: 20: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if the biologist salary for
different divisions is conparable. He opined that the workload
is different for the various departnents.

MR. LAWSON replied that he does not have this information.
CGenerally, he said, a Fisheries Biologist IV nust neet certain
specifications, regardless of the division, and therefore should
have a conparabl e wor kl oad.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN commented that this mght cone up in
future budget discussions.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how the sal ari es are deci ded upon.
MR. LAWSBON replied that when the union contracts expire, the
state works with the unions to decide on the ternms for the new

contracts.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the Departnent of Adm nistration
does this.

MR. LAWSON replied that this is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON related her experience with a different
departnment, in which the enployees were unable to receive a

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -17- January 17, 2007



raise unless this was extended to all enployees in the sane
class. The survey, she said, is “very inportant.”

10: 25: 55 AM

MR LAWGON stated that the job classes are grouped as
“famlies,” and the departnent is attenpting to find data that
wi ||l support the necessary changes. The fundanental issue, he
said, is that the salary schedule is inadequate.

CHAI R SEATON requested a listing of ADF&G enpl oyees who are in
the “retire/rehire” program along with an explanation of why
the position was unable to be filled using the wusual hiring
process.

M5. NELSON continued wth her presentation by discussing
Aquacul ture Permtting. The division provides technical
assi stance and pernmits 30 private non-profit sal non hatcheries,
one aquatic shellfish hatchery, and several shellfish farmns.

CHAI R SEATON announced that there would be an additional
overview on salnon hatcheries and shellfish hatcheries and
requested that ADF&G be present at those overviews.

10: 29: 20 AM

M5. NELSON went on to discuss data processing. There are eight
dat abase systens utilized and maintained by the division. These
are: fish tickets systens, e-landing electronic catch reporting
system internet accessible in season catch and escapenent
dat abases, geographical information systens databases, internet
accessi ble news release database, and seafood processor/buyer
intent to operate system

VB. NELSON noved on to discuss the final core service,

information services and public information. Thi s includes:
design and nmmintenance of the division web site, publishing
brochures and other i nformati onal materials on division
progr ans, producing custom reports from fish ticket and
Commer ci al Qperators Annual Repor t ( COAR) dat abases,
adm ni stering di vi si onal confidentiality pol i ci es, and

devel opi ng and adm ni stering divisional publication policies and
pr ocedur es.

CHAIR SEATON asked if there have been any problens wth
reporting and enforcenent related to direct nmarket vessels.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 18- January 17, 2007



M5. NELSON replied that to her know edge, there have not been.
She offered to look into this.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if there is a public information
officer (PO working in the departnent.

M5. NELSON replied that Geron Bruce, assistant director of the
ADF&G perforns the aforenentioned tasks. She then listed the
organi zation of the division, as follows: Sout heast Fi sheries
Managenment Regi on — Dougl as, Central Fisheries Managenent Regi on
— Anchorage, Arctic-Yukon-Kuskokwi m Fisheries Mnagenent Region
— Anchorage, Wstward Fisheries WMnagenent Region - Kodi ak,
Di vi sional Headquarters - Juneau. There are nunerous offices
W t hin each region.

10: 34: 50 AM

CHAI R SEATON, in regard to the Togiak Herring Fishery, comrented
that the value of the fishery has greatly decreased, with a
catch rate which is being determ ned by the processors, rather
t han ADF&G He comented that in the past, a |arge amount of
resources were put into the aforenentioned fishery. He asked if
the Commercial Fisheries Division has reassessed where the
resources are being allocated, in order to be nore consistent
with the requirenents of the fishery.

M5. NELSON replied that the division is currently working to
determ ne ways to reach goals using |ess funding. The herring
fisheries, she said, are being taken into consideration.
Returning to her presentation, she explained that during FY 07,
the division enployed 306 permanent staff and 499 seasonal
staff, which were located in 20 permanent offices, 84 seasonal
office or field canps, and four |arge research vessels.

10: 37:10 AM

M5. NELSON noved on to discuss a graph titled “General Fund
Appropriations for the Division of Conmercial Fisheries - Fiscal

Years 1977-2007.” She explained that the red |line on the graph
shows actual dollars, while the yellow line shows these dollars
adjusted to 2004 dollars. She pointed out an increase in the

m d- 1990s, follow ng which is a steady decline.

CHAI R SEATON inquired as to whether the decrease in 2001-2002
was related to the “Habitat D vision.”

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -19- January 17, 2007



M5. NELSON replied that this was a separate division. She then
moved on to a graph titled “Year to Year Change in
Appropriations to D vision of Comrercial Fisheries - Fiscal
Years 1977 to 2007.” She pointed out the sharp variations, and
stated that it is “very difficult to run ongoing progranms in the
face of this type of variability.”

10: 40: 45 AM

M5. NELSON, referring to a graph titled “Percentage of Total
Expenditures for Core Services,” she pointed out that 57 percent
of the total expenditures utilized were for stock assessnent and
applied research. 38 percent was for harvest nanagenent, 3
percent was for information services, 2 percent for aquaculture
perm tting. She conmented that the anmount of expenditures used
for managenent and research is simlar to the Division of Sport
Fi sh. Pointing out that several core services are not |isted,
she said that these are directly involved with other core
services, and therefore are included.

M5. NELSON noved on to the Mssions and Measures of the
di vi si on. The four targets are: exvessel value of comerci al
harvest s and maricul ture producti on above $1 billion;
reproductive goals achieved for nore than 80 percent of
noni t ored stocks; develop genetic baselines for Al askan Chi nook

chum and sockeye stocks that will include 100 stocks in each
baseline; all aquatic farnms operating with current permts.
Referring to a graph titled “Exvessel value of commercial
harvests and mariculture production about $1 billion annually,”

she pointed that that for 2001 — 2005, this target was achieved.
The next graph, titled “Reproductive goals achieved for nore
than 80 percent of nonitored stocks,” shows the achievenent of
this goal from 2001-2005. She noted that this includes all
speci es nonitored.

CHAIR SEATON reiterated his earlier request for additional
i nformation.

10: 44: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX, in regard to the exvessel value neasure,
asked how nmuch of the total amount went to Al askan residents.

M5. NELSON replied that she does not currently have this
i nformation; however, she will provide it.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 20- January 17, 2007



CHAI R SEATON clarified that the question was referring to how
much of the aggregate anmount went to out-of-state permt hol ders
versus in-state.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX agreed that this is correct.

M5. NELSON noved on to discuss the third neasure *“Develop
generic baselines for Al askan Chinook, chum and sockeye stocks
that will include 100 stocks in each baseline.”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked for an explanation as to why 100
stocks are included in each baseline.

M5. NELSON replied that this “does seem like an arbitrary

nunber.” Wiile she was not involved in the devel opment of this
particular target, she was involved in developing the baseline
col | ecti ons. She explained that, in order to do stock
separation, every fish involved nust be included in the
basel i ne. Due to budget constraints, the division focused on
the primary 100 stocks statew de, using regional input. The
project was started in 2002, and has received “very little
dedi cated funding.” She stated that the progress has been a

result of “opportunistic sanpling and piggy-backing on other
projects, and just doing what we can, so we can get this
baseline up and running.” Pointing out the availability of
genetic techniques to assist in the stock assessnment, she
commented that a proportion would be “nore informative” than a
nunber .

10: 48: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN, in regard to the 100 stocks, stressed
the inportance of having a conparison nunber in order to have a
bett er under st andi ng.

M5. NELSON agreed that this information should be evaluated

differently. In response to questions from Chair Seaton, she
explained that the genetic results are cumulative, while the
scale sanples need to be collected on a yearly basis. She
expl ai ned that scales represent “stages of life-history,” while

genetic sanpl es show an evolutionary tinme scale.
CHAI R SEATON, for the benefit of the comrittee, explained that

“scale analysis” is a growh ring, simlar to that of trees.
Thi s nust be done yearly, he said, due to environnental changes.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -21- January 17, 2007



M5. NELSON, in response to further comments from Chair Seaton

stated that several nethods are used by the departnent during
stock separation studies. These include scale pattern analysis,
age marker analysis, coded wire tags, parasite analysis, egg
si ze, and geneti cs. In addi ti on, si ngl e-nucl eoti de
pol ynor phisms (SNPs) will be utilized.

CHAIR SEATON inquired as to the tinmefrane of the anal ysis.

10: 55: 38 AM

VB. NELSON replied that it is possible to perform the
af orenenti oned technique “in-season.” However, the departnent
does not intend to utilize this technique for in-season analysis
in the near future. Instead, it will be used to determ ne |ong-
termtrends in order to assist the Board of Fisheries during its
deci si on maki ng process. In addition, she said, this will help

to inmprove the forecasts, productivity, and understanding of
st ocks.

M5. NELSON then discussed a graph titled “Al aquatic farns

operating with current permts.” She stated that in 2003, |ess
than [50 percent] of the aquatic farms in the state were
operating with current permts. This was a result of staffing

changes and backl og. She pointed out that in 2005 over 80
percent are operating with current permts, and surm sed that
t he 2006 data woul d show over 90 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to the status of those farns
W thout current permts.

M5. NELSON offered her wunderstanding that the permts were
subm tted; however, the permts go through the ADF&G and the
[ Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)], which results in a
backl og. The farnms, she said, were operating wth the
understanding that the permts were in place, although they were
not .

10: 58: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES inquired as to the steps involved in
permtting an aquatic farm

M5. NELSON replied that she does not currently have this
i nformation; however, she would get this to the commttee. | t
is, she said, a mnmulti-agency process that the departnent would
like to “streamine.”

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -22- January 17, 2007



M5. NELSON, in response to a question from Representative
W son, explained that during the nost recent permt application
period, a |large nunber of permts were applied for, the nmgjority

of which were from a non-resident. Wiile she is unsure of the
af orenenti oned individuals intentions, she said, many steps are
involved in applying for a permt. She offered her

under standi ng that none of the aforenentioned permts have been
approved.

11: 01: 44 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR)
oversees site | eases.

M5. NELSON replied yes.

CHAIR SEATON pointed out that the aquatic farm application
process is currently open, and a nunber of sites are avail able.
He reiterated that additional information 1is needed, and
commented that several issues have been identifi ed.

M5. NELSON brought nenbers attention to the final page of the

handout, titled “Major Issues.” She offered to neet wth
menbers privately to answer any questions that they mght have,
regarding the issues |isted. In addition, she said, the ADF&G

governor’s transition report is now avail abl e.

CHAI R SEATON requested that copies of the report be given to the
menbers. He stated that he is a nenber of the [Pacific
Fisheries Legislative Task Force] which wll neet on January
26'" 2007. He suggested that questions or concerns be subnitted
to his office, prior to this date.

11: 06: 02 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 11:06:11
AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -23- January 17, 2007



